
Date Published:1 November 2021     

Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday 9 November 2021 at 10.00 am

This meeting will be held in the Council Chamber, Shire Hall, 
Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence. 

Chair

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any declarations of interest.

Chair

3  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 7 September 2021 
(attached).

Chair

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  PREVENTION AND EARLY INTERVENTION IN 
COLLABORATION WITH THE VOLUNTARY AND COMMUNITY 
SECTOR (Pages 7 - 12)

A report on the council’s collaboration work with voluntary sector 
organisations and local communities. 

Executive 
Director of Adult 
Social Care and 
Public Health

DIRECTOR REPORTS

5  CHIEF FIRE OFFICER REPORT (Pages 13 - 20)

An update on matters relating to the delivery of services within the 
portfolio of services delivered by the Chief Fire Officer, (Gloucestershire 
Fire and Rescue Service), and included within the remit of the 
Gloucestershire County Council Adult Social Care and Communities 

Chief Fire 
Officer 



    

Scrutiny Committee, (Trading Standards, Civil Protection and Coroners 
Services).

6  PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT (Pages 21 - 30)

An update from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public 
Health, (Gloucestershire County Council), on matters relating to public 
health, including an update on the response to the COVID-19 Emergency. 

A Covid-19 intelligence summary update will be circulated prior to the 
meeting to provide members with the latest data and information.

Executive 
Director of Adult 
Social Care and 
Public Health

7  ADULT SOCIAL CARE REPORT (Pages 31 - 40)

An update from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public 
Health, (Gloucestershire County Council), on matters relating to adult 
social care, including an update on the response to the COVID-19 
Emergency.

Executive 
Director of Adult 
Social Care and 
Public Health

8  QUARTER 2 (2021/22) PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages 41 - 48)

To consider performance data in relation to the delivery of services within 
the remit and context of this committee.

Members are invited to consider the information and submit any questions 
to jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the meeting.

Chair

9  WORK PLAN 

To note the dates of future meetings and suggest items to add to the 
committee work plan.

25 January 2022 
8 March 2022 (a joint meeting with the Gloucestershire Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee to review the NHS Winter Plan).
10 May 2022
5 July 2022 
6 September 
15 November 2022 

Chair

Membership –  Cllr Stephen Hirst (Chair), Cllr Alastair Chambers, Cllr Cate Cody, 
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington, Cllr Lisa Spivey (Vice-Chair), Cllr Pam Tracey MBE, 
Cllr Suzanne Williams, Cllr Terry Hale and Cllr Steve Robinson 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact Rob Ayliffe, Monitoring 
Officer/Head of Strategic Planning, Performance & Change.  01452 328506 e-mail: 
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the meeting.

mailto:jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk


    

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Jo Moore, Senior Democratic Services Adviser :01452 
324196/fax: 425240/e-mail: jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk

 

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (Tel 01452 324202) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:jo.moore@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Minutes of the meeting of the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee 
held on Tuesday 7 September 2021. The meeting was held as a virtual meeting via 
webex..

PRESENT: 
Cllr Stephen Hirst (Chair)
Cllr Alastair Chambers
Cllr Cate Cody
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-
Charrington

Cllr Lisa Spivey
Cllr Pam Tracey MBE
Cllr Suzanne Williams
Cllr Steve Robinson

1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllr Terry Hale. 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting.

3. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting on 6 July 2021 were confirmed as a true record of that 
meeting. 

4. GLOUCESTERSHIRE SAFEGUARDING ADULTS BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 
2020/21 

Paul Yeatman, (Independent Chair of the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults 
Board), and Sarah Jasper, (Head of Safeguarding (Adults) at Gloucestershire 
County Council), presented the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board Annual 
Report 2020/21. 

Seeking to protect and empower adults with care and support needs and at risk of 
abuse and neglect, the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board was established 
in April 2009 in response to Government, (Department of Health), Legislation. 

The Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board (GSAB) Strategic Plan focuses on 
several key priorities, enabling the Board to strategically review and plan its work. 
The priorities reflect the direction set out in current national drivers for change and 
are based on the six key principles that underpin all adult safeguarding work, (as 
defined by the Care Act, 2014). 

Working in partnership with local communities, the Board aims to:- 
 prevent abuse and neglect; 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

 identify and report abuse and neglect; 
 respond to abuse and neglect; 
 support people who have suffered abuse or neglect to recover, and to regain 

trust in those around them; and 
 raise awareness of safeguarding adults and the role everyone can play in 

responding to, and preventing, abuse and neglect. 

From April 2015, the Gloucestershire Safeguarding Adults Board has a statutory 
responsibility to produce an annual report into the effectiveness and quality of multi-
agency safeguarding practice. The purpose of the GSAB Annual Report is to review 
progress in relation to the actions set out in the GSAB Strategic Plan. The Strategic 
Plan covers a three year period, as recommended by the Care Act Statutory 
Guidance.  A new Strategic Plan was being produced, covering the period 2021-
2024. Replacing the 2015-18 Plan, it is hoped the new plan will go live in 
September 2021

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the report acknowledged that the past year 
had been an unprecedented year in the demands placed on delivering Adult Social 
Care services The case studies included in the report highlighted some of the 
challenges that had been evident both nationally and throughout Gloucestershire.

In noting the report, members sought clarification on several areas of concern, 
including what action was being taken to ensure the positive multi-agency work 
being carried out did not cease at a certain point in a person’s recovery. 
Questioning how the committee might support this work and help signpost people to 
seek the help they need, it was suggested members continue to strive to raise 
awareness in local communities of the services available to people in need of 
support and to become involved whenever they feel intervention and support is 
required. 

Unable to comment or discuss individual cases at the meeting, it was suggested 
members with specific concerns email Sarah Jasper after the meeting to raise their 
concerns.  

It was acknowledged that, as a result of the pandemic, a significant number of 
services had ‘shut down’, clearly impacting on the lives of vulnerable people and 
those at most risk. It was hoped the introduction of new government interventions 
would help address some of the issues that had evolved during this time, including 
the initiative to reduce the number of people from rough sleeping.

Reflecting on the number of people suffering from alcohol abuse, a member 
enquired why there had been no reference to people affected by drug abuse 
included within the report. It was noted that drug abuse did not just relate to young 
people, (people aged between 18 and 24), but to people from all age ranges. It was 
confirmed that people suffering from substance misuse had not gone away and 
explained that there had been a large number of alcohol related deaths during the 
pandemic, hence the focus on alcohol abuse in the report. Going forward, it was 
hoped government funding and new initiatives would help address issues relating to 
both alcohol and substance abuse. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Highlighting the need to maintain the momentum of the work involved in 
safeguarding vulnerable adults with specific needs, the report was noted.

5. MARKET MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW 

Professor Sarah Scott, Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public Health, 
introduced the report and gave an overview of information relating to the challenges 
of managing adult social care in Gloucestershire.

It was explained that the Care Act 2014 sets out the law around market 
development in adult social care. Under the Act, Gloucestershire County Council, 
(GCC), has a duty to not only meet and fund the needs of people eligible for care, 
but also to shape the local care market to encourage quality, choice and sufficiency 
of provision.  This duty applies to the whole local population, including those who 
pay for their own care. Equally, it extends beyond care which is commissioned, and 
includes the informal care and support provided by families, networks of support 
and in communities. 

In addition to the statutory requirement under the Care Act to manage care 
markets, GCC also has duties to improve the quality of care under the Health & 
Social Care Act 2012. It was explained that the key focus of achieving this is to 
ensure care is integrated around the needs of patients/people. It was reported that, 
in the past, the handover of responsibility between the NHS and social care had 
often been problematic. The Care Act aimed to ensure greater integration between 
services, including community based commissioned services from the independent 
and voluntary sectors. Market management includes services that support both 
health and social care delivery, whether purchased by public authorities or by 
private individuals. 

As well as the statutory duties outlined in the Care Act, the County Council also has 
responsibilities under the Transforming Care Programme and the Gloucestershire 
Transforming Care Partnership. Transforming Care aims to improve health and 
care services for people with learning disabilities and/or autism, by allowing them to 
live, with support, closer to home. 

The report set out a brief assessment of the current care market, the challenges 
and changes faced by the County Council and its response to such pressures.

The report confirmed that the County Council was committed to working with the 
care market to provide high quality, affordable care and support and promote 
independence. To deliver these aims, the council recognised:-

The need to increase the availability and range of care and support delivered 
in people’s own homes and communities; 

The need for more specialist care from which to support people with complex 
needs across all settings, including the predicted rising demand for nursing 
care;

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

The need for fewer long-term residential placements, from which it was 
anticipated that the shrinking market was likely to result in the closure of 
some establishments;

The importance of increasing the availability and responsiveness of home 
care and short-term care provision to support hospital discharge and achieve 
better long-term outcomes for people. 

It was confirmed that the council aimed to share intelligence about shifting choices 
and the demands across the Integrated Care System. The council to work 
collaboratively with the market to support and grow a skilled and sustainable 
workforce which will ensure access to quality care. Emphasising the need to ensure 
that the county’s care offer remained sustainable within the current financial 
context, the council aimed to continue to invest in supporting the development and 
sustainability of the care market. 

Noting the impact of demographic changes on the demand for care and the impact 
of the Covid-19 pandemic, it was confirmed that such consequences had had a 
profound effect on the care market, including increasing demands on the domiciliary 
care market. Although too soon to assess the full impact of the pandemic, it was 
noted that the next few years would require careful and strategic management of 
the care market. The need to consider demand and supply factors and to address 
the ongoing issue of recruitment would be essential.

Responding to questions on how to address the challenges presented to the 
Gloucestershire care market, it was suggested that the committee continue to 
receive regular updates on the ‘Adult Single Programme’, including updates on the 
use of the three tier model, as part of the regular reporting to the committee. 
Acknowledging the need to respond to the government announcement anticipated 
later that day, it was agreed the issue would need to be brought back to a future 
meeting.

The report was noted.

6. ADULT SOCIAL CARE REPORT 

The committee received a detailed update from the Executive Director of Adult 
Social Care and Public Health, (Gloucestershire County Council), on matters 
relating to adult social care for the county, including the response to the COVID-19 
Emergency.

The report included detailed information on the county’s park home project.  The 
update was noted, with a request for a presentation on the progress of this project 
in the new year.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

7. CHIEF FIRE OFFICER REPORT 

The committee received an update on matters relating to the delivery of services 
within the portfolio of services of the Interim Chief Fire Officer of the 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service as included in the remit of the Adult 
Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee. The report included updates on 
services and performance relating to delivery of Trading Standards, Civil Protection 
and Coroners Services.

The report included a detailed update on Animal Health and Welfare across 
Gloucestershire. Responding to concerns about the welfare of animals and 
livestock in the Forest of Dean and Gloucester City areas, the Interim Chief Fire 
Officer noted the comments and agreed to monitor the concerns. 

The report was noted.

8. PUBLIC HEALTH REPORT 

The committee received an update from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care 
and Public Health, (Gloucestershire County Council), on matters relating to public 
health, including the response to the COVID-19 Emergency. 

A Covid-19 intelligence summary update was circulated prior to the meeting and 
presented to the committee to provide members with the latest data and 
information.

The committee received updates on the following matters: - 

 Mental health support/services for children and young people
 Anchor Institutions
 Changes to the vaccine of the HPV immunisation programme
 Professor Dame Carol Black’s Review of Drugs: prevention, treatment & 

recovery
 Children’s Weight Management Support
 COVID-19 Update (Step 4 of the ‘roadmap’) 
 COVID-19 Prevention Grants 2021
 Mandating COVID-19 vaccinations in care homes

The update was noted.

9. QUARTER 1 PERFORMANCE REPORT 2021/22 

Members were presented with an analysis of performance relating to the delivery of 
services within the remit of the Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny 
Committee. The report was prepared by the County Council’s Performance & 
Improvement Team covering Quarter 1 of 2021/22.

The report was noted.

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

10. WORK PLAN 

The committee was asked to suggest items to add to the committee work plan. 

Highlighting the impact of the pandemic on the delivery of services going forward 
and the likely outcomes of pressures being placed on the NHS and Public Health 
Team over the winter months, it was suggested that the committee engage with the 
members of the Health Scrutiny Committee in considering the NHS Winter Plan 
proposals for 2021/22. An in-depth review of the Winter Plan 2021/22 to be 
considered at a joint committee meeting on the date of the scheduled Health 
Scrutiny Committee meeting on 8 March 2022. The date of the Adult Social Care 
and Communities Committee meeting scheduled on 15 March 2022 to be held in 
reserve (if required).

The following items were added to the committee work at the meeting: - 

 Executive Director of Public Health (DPH) Annual Report – Jan 2022
 Children’s Weight Management – March 2022 

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 12.15pm

Page 6



1

Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Report from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public 
Health

9th November 2021 – Prevention and early intervention in 
collaboration with the Voluntary and Community Sector

_________________________________________________  

Introduction

The purposes of this report are: 

 to outline how we work with collaboratively with voluntary sector organisations 
and communities to support people’s independence; 

 to describe the impact and benefits on social care practice and for the people 
of Gloucestershire; 

 to describe the next stages of our plans for continued collaborative working 
with communities to promote independence and wellbeing 

Key Messages 

 The voluntary and community sector are a vital and valued part of 
Gloucestershire’s care and support market

 Strong relationships rooted in trust and mutual understanding are key to the 
success of our preventive approach 

 People are choosing to live independently in their own homes for as long as 
possible, making the provision of vibrant and varied community offers an 
essential part of our care market

 A foundation of community or placed based activities is essential to delivering 
our Adult Single Programme objective of enabling people to live independent 
lives, in their own homes and communities

 GCC can work collaboratively with the voluntary and community sector (VCS) 
and community groups to strengthen connections and invest in the areas 
where there are gaps or increasing demand 

 Investing in our communities to create the conditions for individuals and 
communities to take more responsibility for their wellbeing and health will 
contribute towards reduced health inequalities and shared responsibility

 Annually, the Adult Single Programme invests over £800k in directly 
supporting VCS services 

 Working with the VCS enables us to meet our Care Act duties to prevent, 
reduce and delay needs.

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2

Background

Gloucestershire County Council’s model of social care practice, known as the 3 
Conversation model, works with people’s strengths and those of their family and 
community to enable them to remain as independent as possible for as long as 
possible. This approach means that we can see people more quickly, we build a 
relationship with the individual, their carers and family, we are able to explain 
where social care can help them and how the system works.

The foundation of this model is Tier 1 in which information, advice and guidance 
and universal services combine to provide very local support for people. The VCS 
is uniquely positioned to support this approach as they will have much greater 
knowledge about people’s situation which helps prevent escalating needs and 
enable us to intervene early and before people reach crisis point.

In July 2017, Adult Social Care (ASC) carried out a survey amongst social care 
practitioners, the VCS and individuals.  We wanted to find out what people value 
and why and how they found out about the services and support that are 
available to them. We were also keen to find out where people go for information 
and advice and find out about activities in their community which help them to 
remain independent and living in their own home.  The survey found that people 
valued spending time with friends and families and spending time doing the 
things they loved.  However, often it was difficult for individuals and practitioners 
to find out what was on offer in their community.  The survey gave a strong 
picture of a wide range of activities already taking place but it did reveal some 
gaps.  Most frequently reported were support for low level mental health issues, 
support for those living with dementia and their Carers, loneliness and social 
isolation and access to affordable transport. 

During 2018, ASC hosted a series of locality workshops across the county to set 
out the challenges social care was facing and the ambition to work differently by 
introducing a new model for fieldwork known as the 3 conversation model. In 
order for this model to work social care staff would need to be given the tools to 
find out about local activities and build relationships with these local agencies.  
The workshops were well attended by the VCS, practitioners across health and 
care and district council staff who all recognised the need for closer collaboration 
across the system to better support people to remain independent. 

The feedback from the community wellbeing survey and the locality workshops 
identified the need for:

1. A cross sector network for practitioners, VCS and community groups to 
get to know one another , share intelligence , work together to address 
gaps and barriers

Page 8



3

2. An information portal for health and care and community information 
that could be used by practitioners, the VCS, families and individuals 
that was dynamic and updated regularly

3. Small grants to invest in more activities in communities where there are 
gaps or increased demand 

To respond to these needs identified at the workshops we have developed the 
following to support the health and care system and build community capacity.

1. Know Your Patch Networks 

The Know Your Patch (KYP) Networks1 were created in 2018 based in each district 
of Gloucestershire and are hosted by local VCS organisations who with have a 
service level agreement with GCC to cover the administration costs. 

They were established with the belief that thriving communities are key to good 
lives. Connecting with local people, places and things that can help will in turn help 
people live well and worry less. KYP believes that people prefer to find their own 
solutions. When we get better at helping those people, we reduce pressure on 
services. 

KYP is built of a network of organisations in each district in Gloucestershire. These 
networks meet quarterly for networking and discussion and communicate through 
email bulletins and updates. All the ASC locality teams are part of the KYP networks 
and have built strong and trusted relationships with the KYP host agencies. 

During the pandemic the KYP networks swiftly switched to meeting on Zoom which 
has meant the membership grew to 1800 by September 2021.  This is made up of 
VCS, public sector practitioners and volunteers. A recent review of the KYP networks 
with the host agencies reported that:

“KYP has become the backbone to much of the meaningful work that we 
facilitate. Whether it is supporting a collaboration of groups to apply for 
funding, sourcing volunteers, co-designing health services, supporting 

holiday hunger provision, or simply sourcing potatoes for the local foodbank, 
the FoD KYP network plays a crucial part in identifying and addressing an 

incredible variety of gaps and needs in the District.”

A survey of members of the KYP Networks in May 2021 about the impact of the 
networks reported that 98% of organisations that completed the survey experienced 
a positive impact from attending the KYP meetings. Some of the comments were: 
with other organisations and the community

o “It’s been a lifesaver during lockdown, a great way to stay in touch. Also good 
to have zoom meetings, I've come to many more.”

1 Find the details for the Know Your Patch Networks here www.knowyourpatch.org.uk 

Page 9

http://www.knowyourpatch.org.uk/


4

o “It has enabled us to improve and expand our services.”
Allows me to provide a more holistic service for 

2. Your Circle 

As part of Conversation 1, ASC practitioners use the information on Your Circle2 to 
identify local activities and support that may be of interest to the individuals they are 
assessing. It ensures that people have the information, advice and guidance they 
need at their fingertips. 

Timely, up-to-date and reliable information is essential in enabling people to make 
good choices about care and support, and to find the community support they need 
when they need it, whether it’s a practitioner, a carer, an individual or a family 
member

Your Circle is resourced by ASC as a dynamic portal that can be updated by the 
Your Circle team or by organisations themselves. KYP Members are encouraged to 
update their entries and the team regularly attend the network meetings 

3. Thriving Communities Grants 

During the consultation phase in 2018 it was acknowledged that as well as 
increasing demands on ASC there were increasing demands on the voluntary sector 
and community groups to provide more activities and support for people.  The 
Thriving Communities Grant Programme is designed to invest in these organisations 
and their activities which promote social connections and maintaining independence 
at home.  The Thriving Communities Grants are promoted through the KYP 
networks, the Gloucestershire VCS Alliance Bulletin and on Your Circle.

In 2018/19, 30 Thriving Community grant applications were awarded.  In 2021 we 
have received 72 grant applications for the fund which are currently being scored by 
the grant panels consisting of a locality social worker, the KYP lead, a community 
engagement worker, a District Council officer, a GCC Lead Commissioner and a 
member of the ASP team. This demonstrates both the success of the fund and the 
need for investment in local agencies.

Since 2018, the Adult Single Programme has awarded £1,075,189 in grants to 145 
community or voluntary sector organisations, which has meant an additional 3,214 
people have been supported. 

Digital Innovation Fund 

In 2020, we also introduced the Digital Innovation Fund (DIF). This £200k annual 
fund is targeted at community organisations which aim to support people’s 
independence through the use of technology. Since its inception, the DIF has funded 
33 projects and supported more than 2,000 people. Projects range from teaching 

2 Your Circle is Gloucestershire County Council’s online care and support directory www.yourcircle.org.uk 

Page 10

http://www.yourcircle.org.uk/


5

people digital skills which help them use video platforms to keep in touch with family 
during the pandemic, to purchasing health and exercise monitoring devices to 
support virtual fitness and wellbeing classes.  By helping people connect with their 
communities, or through borrowing and trying new technologies, we have been able 
to support accessibility and improve health and wellbeing.

This year, we will be focussing our money on supporting schemes which improve 
digital literacy, prevent a decline in health, wellbeing or independence, work with 
BAME communities and/or provide equipment and support to people with disabilities 
and sensory impairments.

Community Response during the Pandemic

The community response during the pandemic was co-ordinated by the County 
Council, the six District Councils and Health working closely with local voluntary and 
community groups.  The established KYP networks were key to this approach as 
they were able to rapidly convene virtual meetings to bring together VCS 
organisations, community groups and newly created mutual aid groups.  The 
networks were the ‘ears’ on the ground about what was happening in our 
communities and were able to pass requests, feedback and comments to the 
Community Resilience Cell for consideration and action.  An example of this was the 
creation of the Community Resilience Grants Fund in April 2020 to get money as out 
as quickly as possible to community groups for items such as floats, food supplies 
mobile phones, freezers and children’s activity packs. 

The feedback collected by the KYP networks allowed us to understand what the 
needs were and put the processes in place to provide food, prescriptions and social 
contact for those who needed it.  The networks increased the frequency of their 
meetings by moving to Zoom and created a space for problem solving about the 
practical challenges vulnerable individuals were facing such as buying food without 
access to the internet, 

The number of voluntary sector members of the KYP networks has doubled during 
the pandemic as Zoom meetings are more accessible and time efficient.  The trust 
and mutual understanding across the networks has deepened as a result of the 
collective social action to support our communities.   

What impact has it had?

Throughout the lifetime of the KYP Networks, Thriving Community Grants and the 
DIF we have gathered people’s feedback so that we understand the impacts of this 
way of working as well as gathering information about where gaps may remain.

This feedback has shown us that that working with the VCS provides our social care 
system with flexibility, with the ability to respond rapidly without compromising 
personal choices, and delivers excellent value for money. The VCS are uniquely 
placed to understand communities, to deliver support on a very local scale, and to 

Page 11



6

genuinely link people together, thereby supporting independence and improving 
lives. 

Here are some of the comments and feedback that were given by individuals who 
were supported through our Tier One provision.

“I came here for information…. I’ve gained confidence and friendship and we 
add another quote 

Next steps 

As feedback and monitoring to date show us that working hand in hand with the VCS 
is hugely beneficial for the Council and for the people we support, we want to 
continue building on these successes. We have therefore committed Care Act 
budget at the same level for the next financial year. 

We are also actively working across the Integrated Care System to share and extend 
the demonstrable power of this style of working. This has enabled us to attract a 
further £200k from Gloucestershire CCG to explore the rollout of a successful pilot 
project which will create hubs of ‘digital buddies’ in every district. These hubs will be 
co-ordinated, run and sustained in the community sector, enabling us to reach all 
parts of the county and to include people who we might usually find hard to connect 
with our preventative services. The aim of the hubs will be to teach people the digital 
skills and confidence vital for modern independent living, using a peer support 
model.  

Our next steps will be to consider how we best support the VCS to sustain and 
develop their work so that we can deliver our shared ambitions to enable more 
people to lead independent lives, and to consider how to further embed and extend 
VCS work in an integrated care system governed by new Care Act reforms.

“Residents are over 
the moon to be 

connecting for family 
and friends ”

GL Communities Impact 
Survey (DIF)

“To date [we] have 
supported 113 individuals 
to get online and make the 
most of their tech, and 333 

people have joined our 
Facebook Springboard 
groups.  The impact on 
individuals is dramatic.”

Age UK (DIF)

“I came for 
information... I’ve 
gained confidence 
and friendship and 

we get a decent 
cooked meal.”

Individual accessing 
Thriving Community 
Grant funded activity

“A lady whose daughter has moved to Gloucester and does 
not enjoy meeting new people, has joined Knit & Natter and 
the Walking for Health Group and states that these activities 
have given her a new circle of friends and she feels confident 

to come into the Community Café for a drink.”
Organisation receiving Thriving Community Grant

“The training and 
technological 

equipment not only 
helped [them] to live 
independently, but 

also assisted [them] 
to feel less socially 

isolated ”
Insight Glos (DIF)

Page 12



CHIEF FIRE OFFICER REPORT 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

9 NOVEMBER 2021

Title Chief Fire Officer Report 

Chief Fire Officer 
Suite of Services

Trading Standards, Civil Protection and Coroners 
Services

Purpose of 
Report

To provide a strategic update on issues and key 
areas of service provision, opportunities and 
challenges.

1. Trading Standards

Trading Standards has returned to intelligence led activity with officers carrying out physical 
inspections, responding to customer complaints and supporting businesses in person except 
where bespoke risk assessments identify specific vulnerabilities which make face to face 
contact inappropriate.  In such cases the team is utilising alternative contact provision 
developed during the Covid 19 pandemic period.

Officers are also transitioning to more time working from the office in a Covid safe manner as 
identified during agile working discussions.  This is progressing well, but I can foresee full 
implementation will be affected by the pace at which redesign and re-designation of working 
spaces is rolled out to workplaces outside of Shire Hall.

Overall demand on the service in continues to increase.  Demand over Q1 and Q2 has risen 
by 14% against the same period in 20/21 but once adjusted for the reduced levels of core 
demand and high levels of Covid response work last year, the real increase in demand 
against core Trading Standards activities this year is 28% 

The Service is recording an increase in the number of unsafe products placed on the market 
by Gloucestershire businesses; market surveillance and enforcement in relation to product 
safety legislation is a statutory duty for the Council, discharged by this Service. 
 
This work is informed by intelligence supplied by the Office of Product Safety and Standards, 
by consumer complaints and by officer initiative.  Response to this increased demand 
requires specialist knowledge and often absorbs the service’s full capacity of qualified and 
experienced officers leaving no resource to deal with new demand.  This creates a risk that 
the service may not be able to satisfy the performance indicator of ‘responding to reports of 
unsafe products within one day’.  

The easily ability to import cheap products through the internet and the transfer of 
responsibility for ensuring product safety to the UK importer following the loss of free 
movement of goods across the EU suggests this level of demand will continue for some 
time.

The Service is also recording a marked change in the modus operandi of rogue builders 
resulting in more complex and demanding investigations.  Traders appear to be skirting the 
fringes of contractual breach and illegal activity often taking large sums of money from 
consumers for little or no work.  Home improvements and renovations is the second most 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



complained about area of work in Gloucestershire and the one which records the highest 
detriment levels so is a priority area for the Service.  

Resilience across several disciplines within the Service (Food Standards, product Safety, 
Doorstep Crime and Scams) is regularly tested by levels of demand or by managing demand 
while experienced and qualified officers take annual leave.  There is a national dearth of 
qualified Trading Standards Officers and the route to qualification is stifled by a general lack 
of funding across Local Authorities to pay for training. This Service has been able to recruit 
at trainee level and has one new recruit and one existing member of staff undergoing 
professional qualification training at the moment with a view to relieving this pressure in the 
longer term longer term.  

This is also the first step in addressing the ageing profile and sustainability of the service.

Themed – Working with Partner Agencies on Rogue Trading

The Service has 2 Officers (1 FTE) with specialist responsibility for this area for work.  All 
other officers can be called upon to assist or to work under supervision in this area.

This is a Service priority area for a number of reasons, individuals may be targeted because 
of perceived vulnerabilities; targeted individuals are more likely to engage when they are 
vulnerable; the nature of the crime can leave individuals feeling at risk and unwilling to 
support enforcement and having identified a target, the criminals can return several times 
until funds are exhausted.  Also, people do not want to be seen as not being able to cope by 
friends and relatives, especially if they believe it will result in conversations about ability to 
continue living independently.

During 2020/21 Covid restrictions, especially restrictions on travel and visiting people’s 
homes distorted the level of activity in this area so, for this section only and to properly reflect 
the scale of work in this area, figures are taken from 2019/2020.  

Although only just over 11% of the total complaints received in 2019/20, Door Step Crime 
(DSC) incidents feature as the second most complained about area of work and scams the 
third (motor vehicles are always top of the list). There were 678 DSC incidents and 235 
reported scams, almost 3.5 per working day on average. 

This is a very conservative figure, it is widely accepted that incidents are underreported and, 
reports are made, that reporting is fragmented between the Police, Trading Standards and 
Action Fraud.

Trading Standards did not record a significant increase in reported scam activity during the 
pandemic period but we were aware of and used social media to warn against text and email 
scams referring to Covid fines or testing fees.

Most of the work in this area is in relation to mass mailing scams, all of which hope to entice 
the recipient into making repeat payments.  Sometimes these are benign supplying 
vitamins/supplements or other goods of small value, sometimes they are more sinister 
offering clairvoyant services, preying on people who have suffered significant loss.

Most scams originate outside UK so it is difficult for a local authority team to tackle offenders.  
We are supported by a nationally funded scams team (money from the Department for 
Business Energy and Industrial Strategy).  Locally we benefit from their success working with 
Royal Mail to intercept 130,000 items of scam mail before thy enter the delivery chain (Once 
it enters the process, any item of post sent to a named recipient must, by law, be delivered.) 
and interception outgoing scam mail containing victim’s money.  From this intercepted mail, 

Page 14



the national team provide details of Gloucestershire residents actively responding to scams 
and, in some cases, return money to them.

Members of my team work with scam mail recipients to help them identify malicious scam 
mail and also to encourage them to become more resilient.  As well as victims identified by 
the national team, we work closely with Adult Social Care, raising awareness of the signs of 
scams and DSC amongst locality staff; conducting joint visits via the safeguarding team 
where vulnerable clients are identified.  The aim of all visits is to leave people better 
equipped to cope with attempted scams in the future.

Using an approved method of calculation, the work of this Service tackling scams in 2020/21 
saved slightly over £115,000.

Nuisance calls are another way Gloucestershire residents are targeted.  People feel obliged 
to answer the telephone, especially outside office hours when calls would reasonably be 
expected to come from friends or family.  Also haste to answer the telephone before it stops 
ringing increases the risk of trips and falls in older people.  

In response to nuisance calls, this service has deployed 25 call blocking devices (5 funded 
by Cotswold District Council).  In 2020/21 it is calculated that these 25 devices blocked 1,114 
scam calls resulting in the likely prevention of 6.6 scams and generated savings to the 
individuals concerned of £30,431 and societal savings (social care, NHS, police etc. of 
£18,033.  A total of £48453.

Moving forwards we are interested in promoting peer support through the Friends against 
Scams and Scam Marshall models as well as procuring more call blocker devices as 
demand currently outstrips availability.

Emerging trends include new technological vulnerabilities as the shift form ‘bricks to clicks’ 
forces more people into on-line shopping, increased targeting of younger people through 
social media and new vehicles for scam delivery such as bit coin and other crypto currencies.

The term rogue trader above – although easy to understand, it does not convey the real 
picture.  Although some of our investigations reveal chaotic traders who get out of their 
depth, others identify deliberate criminal activity which has been linked to organised criminal 
gangs and modern slavery,

In the same way as we work to reassure victims and leave them feeling better equipped to 
resist DSC attempts in the future, Officers will also attend ‘live’ incidents as a matter of 
priority.  Any report of trader still present results in an immediate visit by officers to the 
person’s home partly to reassure the consumer but largely to ensure the trader is working 
legally and properly and to intervene where that is not the case, preventing further loss to the 
individual. 

Incidents have historically involved home improvements and driveways, currently the modus 
operandi has shifted to building work or home improvements with some work carried out but 
work coming to a halt once the homeowner has paid over a lump sum as down payment.  
This MO finds a middle ground between fraud or consumer protection offences, civil or 
criminal law breaches.

Although Trading Standards has a very good working relationship with the Police, one of our 
team is embedded within Gloucestershire Police in his role as a Special Police Officer, DSC 
offences are often categorised by the Police as civil law breaches not criminal offences 
because they do not obviously meet the definition of Fraud.  WE are working hard with Police 
colleagues to raise awareness that Trading Standards have recourse to additional criminal 

Page 15



offences for misrepresentation, failure to provide material information and failure to provide 
written information about cancellation rights (where they apply) so are often better placed to 
be the lead investigating agency.

As identified above Covid restrictions in 2020/21 saw a reduction in DSC complaints yet 
intervention by officers resulted in £22,738 savings in money not handed over or recovered 
following intervention

At time of writing the Service has 4 DSC investigations on going and 2 cases in court

In summary both scams and DSC incidents can leave long term impact on those directly 
affected but there are also longer term implications for County Council Adult Social Care, 
possibly both hastening the time at which a person develops care and support needs and 
diminishing their ability to self-fund.

2. Civil Protection Team

CPT continues to support the response to C-19
- Attending C-19 Tactical Response Grp
- Attend C-19 Risk Management Sub-grp

Duty Officer (24/7 on call)
- 3 significant water outages 
- Fuel supply disruption
- Damaged Culvert
- Potential River pollutants
- 3 fire incidents 

In partnership with other LRF member agencies delivered
- 1 day JESIP Multi-agency Tactical Course 18th October 
- 1 day JESIP Multi-agency Operational Course 27th October

The programme of GCC Emergency Management Framework is continuing, areas 
progressed since August include: -

- Elected Members Awareness session delivered and post session report being 
drafted

- X2 ‘Director on Call (Gold)’ briefings outlining their role delivered 
- Director on-call guidance re-written and distributed to all Director on call officers on 

the rota
- Review of CPT information available on the intranet / GCC webpage undertaken 

and being updated
- ‘Gold’ & ‘Silver’ handbooks being drafted 

CPT continue to provide emergency management support for 5 district councils continues as 
per the SLA & each districts individual work plans.

- CPT have supported districts to revise their flood plans to be compliant with the 
revised DEFRA standards – these have been submitted to DEFRA by the stated 
deadline of 24th November 

- Emergency response exercise delivered at Cheltenham BC
- Elected Members awareness session delivered at Gloucester City Council
- Flood plan (including identified flood warden) completed for the ‘Willows’ site in 

partnership with GCC Traveller liaison officers and Tewkesbury BC 
- Emergency response guide updated for Forest of Dean DC & Cotswold DC 

Page 16



CPT works with each district individually to compile a work plan for each ¼, the above does 
not cover all the work undertaken but lists some of the key work streams that have been 
completed since August 21.

CPT have now finalised the plan template and guidance document (in consultation with the 
LRF Community Resilience Sub-Grp) for the promotion of ‘Community Resilience Plans’ – 
these are aligned to the Government Guidance and reflect local considerations. X2 virtual 
workshops are being planned and are hoping to be delivered before the end of 2021.

As part of the LRF Human Aspects sub group work plan, CPT have engaged with the Local 
Health Resilience Board (LHRP) and will attend a scoping workshop at the end of October 
regarding a framework for Psychosocial support for persons affected by an incident.

LRF Animal Disease Plan has been revised (in consultation with Trading Standards / AHPA) 
and is out for consultation (ending 22 Oct) after which this will be finalised and exercised.

Major Accident Hazard Pipeline Plan (MAHP) draft is complete and will be going out for LRF 
consultation on 25th October.

Multi-agency Flood Plan has been revised and submitted to DEFRA for assurance that the 
plan aligns to new DEFRA guidance.

LRF Mass Evacuation & Shelter Plan finalised and is due to be exercised in November.
CPT continue to provide secretariat support the Gloucestershire Prevent Partnership Board 
(GPPB).
Themed – GCC Business Continuity: -

CLT agreed a 2 year business continuity (BC) project plan in October 2020. The aim of the 
project is to strengthen the BCM framework across the organisation and ensure that all 
service areas have an up to date, robust business continuity arrangements.

The County Council is a Category 1 responder as defined in the Civil Contingencies Act 
2004 and as such it has a statutory responsibility to write and maintain continuity plans.

In the early part of the project CLT agreed a ‘Policy & Framework’ document to embed BC 
into the organisation. Following this business impact assessment (BIA) and business 
continuity plan (BCP) templates were designed and agreed to ensure a uniformed approach 
across the council. A dedicated BCM Officer (part of the Civil Protection Team) supports BC 
plan owners to write their service area plans.

The ‘Business Continuity Management Assurance Board’ (BCMAB) was revised and 
membership re-established so that all of the directorates are represented. The BCMAB 
meets on a quarterly basis and is chaired by the Assistant Chief Fire Officer (ACFO). This 
board is responsible for ensuring that the project deliverables are achieved. 

The programme of business continuity management (BCM) work is continuing.  BCM 
activities from mid-August 2021 (last report 12/08/2021) to date have included:-
15 business impact analysis (BIA) meetings held with plan owners (plus follow-up meetings 
where required to sanity-check/finalise BIAs prior to sign off by the appropriate Director).
9 completed and signed off BIAs received.

Only 2 completed business continuity plans (BCPs) received in the new corporate format.

Quarterly meeting of the corporate BCM Assurance Board held 01/10/2021.  Policy 
compliance statistics (no. of plans up-to-date etc.) provided for each Directorate.  Draft CLT 

Page 17



paper presented confirming that progress on BIAs and BCPs is no longer on track given that 
the scope of the work is larger than expected and that plan owners are, for the most part, not 
completing the required work within the agreed timescales (BIAs within 2 weeks and BCPs 
within a further 4 weeks (i.e. within 6 weeks total elapsed time).  The Assurance Board 
approved the paper (to be presented to CLT 28/10/2021) which asks CLT to either (1) take 
action to ensure plan owners (Heads of Service / Service Managers) prioritise the BCM work 
or (2) accept that completion of the project is likely to be delayed 3-6 months.

Work commenced in support of IMS planned exercise of the GCC Cyber Incident Response 
Plan – first planning meeting held with SW Regional Cyber Crime Unit. 

3. Coroners

The primary function of the Coroner team revolves around the safe receipt of the deceased 
and the investigation (and if appropriate inquest) into their death.
The principle objective for the Coroner Team this year is to assist the Senior Coroner in 
addressing the backlog of cases that has resulted in court restrictions due to Covid. The 
Court has remained open during the summer months to ensure inquests can continue to be 
heard and the backlog reduced although the majority of these inquests have had no or little 
public involvement. The Centre Manager, Senior Coroner and AMPS are now working 
together to reassess the building risk assessment with a view to opening the court fully (in 
accordance with social distancing measures) to ensure all outstanding inquests can be listed 
in accordance with expectations from the office of the Chief Coroner.
An additional objective, and principle risk to the Service, will be to address the lack of 
pathologists available to conduct coronial autopsies. Timely examination of the deceased is 
an essential initial step in the Coronial investigation process and remains an issue at both 
local and national level. The service has a KPI of ‘7 days between referral and autopsy’. 
However, this was stood down during Covid for safety reasons whilst the team were waiting 
for Covid swab results. This KPI has now been re-introduced for the Mortuary Team who 
have recently procured the services of an independent pathologist who is able to conduct 
examinations every Tuesday; a day that has always been hard to fill from the existing 
pathologist team. The Senior Coroner and Centre Manager are currently in consultation with 
another independent pathologist in an attempt to secure their services during the busy 
Christmas/winter period to help ease pressures on the entire death management system. 
The mortuary team are also willing to continue with some weekend working (on occasion) to 
ensure autopsies are conducted in a timely manner.

The Coroner’s Service has continued to run its entire core functions from the Coroner’s 
Court at Barnwood, Gloucester throughout the pandemic. Autopsies and body 
receipt/releases has been continuous in the mortuary, with enhanced PPE as directed by 
professional bodies. The majority of bodies have been swabbed on receipt with the results of 
these swabs dictating future investigation.  The Senior Coroner has relaxed expectations on 
internal examinations to help ease pressures on staff and duty pathologists. All members of 
the team have now received both of their vaccinations and are in the process of arranging 
booster jabs with Gloucestershire Royal Hospital. Following the lifting of restrictions, the 
Coroner’s Officers, Mortuary Team and admin have now re-joined as one team and all staff 
are receptive to the work of GCC Transformation Team regarding agile working and the 
potential benefits that this could bring to existing working patterns and the needs of team 
members to have a suitable work/life balance. Those who able to, are still utilising working 
from home when appropriate.

Inquests have continued to operate from Barnwood during all lockdowns. The majority of 
these have had minimal public attendance for social distancing reasons and the larger 
inquests were stood down during the lockdown periods. The Centre Manager, Senior 
Coroner and AMPS are now working together to reassess the building risk assessment with 

Page 18



a view to opening the court fully (in accordance with social distancing measures) to ensure 
all outstanding inquests can be listed in accordance with expectations from the office of the 
Chief Coroner. The service also continues to investigate electronic means for allowing more 
people to virtually attend these hearings.

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Report from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public 
Health

9 November 2021 – Public Health Update

This report contains an update on the following Prevention, Wellbeing and Community Hub 
activities:

1. COVID-19 Update
2. Public Health Nursing
3. Population Health Management
4. Children’s Weight Management Programme
5. Adverse Childhood Experiences
6. Update on Drug and Alcohol Performance Data

1. COVID-19 Update 

Rates (current date data pack also provided)

At the time of writing this report, investigations continue into the precise cause of a 
significant number of false negative results returned to people in the county from an NHS 
Test and Trace laboratory in Wolverhampton.  The UK Health Security Agency (formerly 
Public Health England) who are investigating the incident, estimate that around 400,000 
samples have been processed through the PCR testing lab.  The vast majority of samples 
will have been true negative results, but an estimated 43,000 people may have been given 
incorrect negative PCR test results between 8 September and 12 October, mostly in the 
South West of England, including Gloucestershire.

NHS Test and Trace have now contacted all of the people that could still be infectious to 
advise them to take another test. Close contacts who are symptomatic are also advised to 
take a PCR test in line with normal practice.

Gloucestershire’s COVID-19 case rate increased steeply as the impact of the UKHSA 
laboratory testing issues filtered through. Up to 12 October, the county’s infection rate will 
have appeared lower than it really was due to many tests giving an inaccurate negative 
result (false negatives).  It is unclear how much of the county’s increase was due to those 
affected by the lab issues coming forward for retesting and how much was ‘new’ infection.   
There will almost certainly have been additional community transmission as a consequence 
of these problems.  

The UK Health Security Agency (UKHSA) has stated that this is an isolated incident linked to 
one laboratory and that there is no evidence of any faults with LFD or PCR test kits 
themselves and the public should remain confident in using them and in other laboratory 
services currently provided - all samples taken since the incident was declared have since 
been redirected to other laboratories. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



2

Information on how you can get a PCR test is available on our website. The Government’s 
website provides further information and advice on how to stay safe and help prevent the 
spread of COVID-19 

A verbal update on current rates will be provided at the meeting to explain the recent trends. 

New treatment for COVID-19

The government announced on 17 September 2021 that NHS patients in hospital will benefit 
from a new antibody treatment, Ronapreve. It will initially be used for patients who have not 
mounted a successful immune response against COVID, for example those with certain 
cancers or autoimmune disease.   This will help the NHS in treating any new infections, 
especially over the Winter Period when rates are expected to rise. 

Community Testing Programme

Regular asymptomatic testing using Lateral Flow Devices (LFDs) continues to help find 
cases and break chains of transmission. There has been a shift to focusing on those who 
are not fully vaccinated, those in education, those in higher-risk settings such as the NHS, 
social care and prisons and under-represented groups.  As part of the national Community 
Testing Programme, the Gloucestershire Community Testing Team have been providing the 
targeting the distribution of LFDs to priority groups such low income families, people with 
disabilities, people experiencing homelessness and the traveller community (including 
distributing tests at the recent Stow Horse Fair). Working in Gloucestershire’s areas of 
highest deprivation and with Voluntary and Community Sector partners, the team distributed 
9708 boxes of test kits in the county in September. A further 365 were distributed via 
community collection points established by the team in partnership with other organisations, 
such as the Forest Sensory Service. 

Education and childcare 

The Government’s priority for the 21/22 academic year was that education and childcare 
settings should continue to operate as normally as possible by maximising the number of 
children and young people in face-to face education or childcare and minimising any 
disruption.  The risk from COVID-19 to children and young people remains low and there is a 
move towards managing COVID-19 in a similar way to existing infection control threats.

We are seeing high numbers of cases in schools and expect this to continue.  This is due to 
exemption of under 18s from isolation after close contact, routine LFD testing for 11 year 
olds leading to higher identification of cases, and contact tracing no longer being undertaken 
by education and childcare settings, as well as the easing of restrictions more broadly.  

The Department for Education have issued guidance which sets out thresholds for 
escalating outbreaks to local and regional health protection teams (> 10% of a group that 
has mixed closely e.g. a class, or 2 or more cases for special and boarding schools). When 
an outbreak is escalated we risk assess the situation (based on severity, spread, options for 
intervention, uncertainty and context) and advise on additional control measures where 
required (ranging from initial response measures such as communication with parents and 
enhanced cleaning, through to reintroducing face-coverings, additional testing and reducing 
mixing, to exceptional measures such as restricting attendance).  Each outbreak is given a 
risk score (either low, medium low, medium, medium high and high) and this score dictates 

Page 22

https://linkprotect.cudasvc.com/url?a=https%3a%2f%2fwww.gloucestershire.gov.uk%2fcovid-19-information-and-advice%2ftest-trace-and-isolate%2f&c=E,1,zJFHlGAn_zIAQkSlaSV0bDy0w5oWSSIALmIaimlL7sID6t7B5oCodPhOxD1muJOvxJs1ZUkAwlS8vBhnFqrbu8La9b6s3BmVxTYrw7RibQpo&typo=1
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/covid-19-coronavirus-restrictions-what-you-can-and-cannot-do
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/covid-19-coronavirus-restrictions-what-you-can-and-cannot-do


3

how frequently we follow up and who we cascade the notification to.  Towards the last week 
of the September/October half term, there were large numbers of outbreaks and infection, 
and schools will be issued with further guidance to support their return to school in 
November. 

Vaccine update

The Joint Committee on Vaccination and Immunisation (JCVI) have considered options for a 
booster programme to revaccinate adults in order to reduce mortality, morbidity and 
hospitalisations from COVID-19 over the 2021 to 2022 winter period. They have 
recommended that protection is maintained at a high level, and so all adults in high risk 
groups, health and social care staff and adults aged over 50 will be offered a booster dose of 
the vaccine, 180 days after their second dose. Up to date figures on the local uptake so far is 
provided in the attached data pack.  In addition, all children aged 12 to 15 years old will be 
offered a first dose of COVID-19 vaccine.   This is being delivered through schools, and it is 
expected that all children will have been offered a dose before the end of November 2021.  

Mandatory vaccinations for care staff

Earlier this year, legislation was introduced to ensure that all staff working in residential care 
homes would be fully vaccinated (two doses) against COVID-19 by 11 November 2021.  
This means that the deadline for receiving the first jab was 16 September; workers not 
vaccinated by this date would need to be redeployed or cease employment in the setting.  In 
Gloucestershire, we have provided regular communication with local care home to support 
their vaccine uptake and help people make an informed choice about the vaccine based on 
facts. This has included individual conversations with experts where needed. 
Gloucestershire care homes with lower than a 90% uptake of the COVID-19 vaccine uptake 
were contacted to assess the potential numbers of staff that would leave as a result of the 
legislation. 

54 older person care homes (as of 24/09/2021): 3.85% of staff will not be continuing 
employment and five homes anticipate losing 5 or more staff.

24 younger adult care homes contacted (as of 24/09.2021): 3.84% of staff are thought to be 
leaving due to declining the vaccine.

This is reassuring as the DHSC statement of impact predicted 3-12% of care home staff 
would be unvaccinated by 11 November;  Gloucestershire’s estimate is at the lower end that 
range.

Care home workers who are unable to have the vaccine due to medical reasons are able to 
apply for formal medical exemption through the NHS COVID Pass system.  There is also a 
provision for individuals who have received COVID-19 vaccination abroad to receive 
certification of vaccine status.

Page 23



4

Wider consultation on mandatory vaccinations

On 9 September 2021, DHSC launched a 6-week consultation to seek views on making 
COVID-19 vaccination a mandatory condition of employment for frontline workers in health 
and care settings. This second cohort of workers would include domiciliary care staff, 
supported living and day services in social care, as well as frontline NHS staff. The 
consultation will also consider whether flu vaccination should be mandatory for those in 
contact with patients and people receiving care.  The results of this consultation should be 
known shortly at which point, any potential impact on the system will need to be assessed.

2. Public Health Nursing

Our Public Health Nursing Service includes our Health Visiting and School Nursing teams 
provided by Gloucestershire Health and Care NHS Foundation Trust.  In response to the 
COVID-19 pandemic, the service had to adapt its approach, such as providing a virtual offer 
where safe to do so, and redeploying some staff to support the healthcare system.

As we move into recovery, New Birth Visits and 6 to 8 week checks continue to be 
conducted in the home with full PPE following a Covid assessment. All targeted and 
specialist contacts are also carried out in the home. Covid secure 1-2-1 appointments are 
available for baby hubs and the reintroduction of three drop in hubs are being piloted in 
Gloucester.

In the first quarter of 2021/22 about 70% of Universal children were offered a face to face 
contact for developmental reviews, with the remainder being offered a virtual review. There 
are still families that are declining the offer of developmental checks and for these the 
community nursery nurses offer age appropriate Public Health advice over the phone on 
topics including dental hygiene and home safety. The Health Visiting team have been 
working with the Gloucestershire County Council Early Years Manager to promote 
development checks alongside the promotion of free childcare places for eligible 2 year-olds 
using methods such as leaflets, the NHS bus and a social media campaign. 

The team have reported an increase in safeguarding meetings with higher levels of 
complexity as we emerge from the pandemic.  

The school nursing service has largely returned to business as usual. The National Child 
Measurement Programme (NCMP) has been completed in the 28 schools we were 
requested to target by the Office for Health Improvement and Disparities (OHID). School 
reception year NCMP coverage of 98.4% has been achieved. Vision screening achievement 
is 93.6% at the end of Sept and the service is expecting to achieve 95% by end of October.  

During August there was some redeployment due to short term staff shortages in the district 
nursing service which resulted in a ‘risk to life’ level situation.  There are no longer any 
members of the Health Visiting and School Nursing teams redeployed to community nursing.

Page 24



5

3. Population health management

Population health management is a change in cultural approach and a novel technique to 
plan and organise health and care services provision.

It supports local health and care partnerships to better leverage data to design new models 
of proactive care and deliver improvements in health and wellbeing which make best use of 
the collective resources.

In practical terms it is meant to support the transition to Integrated Care Systems (ICS) with 
a single version of the truth in terms of data, intelligence and insights about the health of the 
population. This way across the system one can identify need, design interventions and 
monitor and evaluate programmes and services in a joint-up, rigorous and continuous way.

To support and enable Population Health Management (PHM) in Gloucestershire we have 
already joined up a wide range of healthcare data sources into a single, pseudonymized, 
dataset and we are overcoming the last technical hurdles to add adult social care data to it.

This will ultimately provide us with a more nuanced and integrated view of the whole person 
journey through the complex pathways of health and care. The joint dataset will also give 
partner organisations and professionals a way to collaborate and provide support across 
service boundaries.

For citizens and patients, this aims to achieve less repetition, more joined-up services which 
are tailored to the need of the person and of the local communities in a more closely 
integrated system which proactively considers the wider and social determinants of health as 
well as the causes of acute ill-health.

For us in public health and social care, PHM ultimately means that the language of 
prevention, planning, health inequalities, opportunity cost, outcome and process evaluation 
will become central and fundamental to the way of working of the ICS, NHS trusts, GPs and 
third sector organisations.

Next steps

During the pandemic the roadmap for PHM was put on hold as the system geared up to 
respond to COVID 19.

We are now updating that roadmap collaboratively, to make sure that everyone across the 
system identifies themselves with it and that the learnings of the pandemic (in terms of 
collaborative working) have been embedded within it.

It is a cultural journey which cannot be solved with mere technical enablers and so we are 
also working on creating the right governing and leadership structures to support a lasting 
process of integration and collaboration across the whole of Gloucestershire. Ultimately the 
aim is to make PHM the interfacing language of the ICS.

Page 25



6

4. Action on ACEs 

Context

The Gloucestershire Action on ACEs programme launched in 2018 with the aim of creating a 
countywide social movement to raise awareness of the impact of childhood adversity and 
trauma, and build resilience. The programme is co-ordinated by the ACEs Panel which 
includes representation from the Council, Gloucestershire police, Gloucestershire Clinical 
Commissioning Group and the Voluntary and Community sector. Adverse Childhood 
Experiences have been identified as a priority in the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Adverse Childhood Experiences (or ACEs) are specific traumatic events, such as abuse, 
neglect or parental substance misuse, occurring in a child’s life before the age of 18. High or 
frequent exposure to ACEs without the support of a trusted adult can have long lasting 
effects into adulthood; impacting on life chances and health outcomes. Developing resilience 
through access to a trusted adult, supportive friends, and positive attachments has been 
shown to improve outcomes even in those who experience high levels of ACEs.

Update on the local programme

A key focus of the Gloucestershire Action on ACEs programme is the use of ‘viral change’; 
using peer to peer influencing to spread knowledge and drive change. The aim is to enable 
professionals working with children and young people (CYP) or vulnerable adults to adopt 
and champion the principles of Action on ACEs in their sector. The programme has 
established a network of over 135 ACEs Ambassadors across social care, early years, the 
VCS and education sectors; and provided free e-learning and resources, including a toolkit 
for front line practitioners working with CYP.

There are good examples of organisations across the county adopting an ACEs informed 
approach, including: the Aston project set up by Gloucestershire constabulary to provide 
mentoring to vulnerable young people experiencing or at risk of ACEs; and a pilot in 
maternity services led by Gloucestershire Hospitals Trust which supported midwives to 
identify risk factors for ACEs and work with expectant mothers and families to build 
resilience and reduce risk. 

The ACEs panel resumed regular meetings in September 2020 after a pause through the 
first phase of the pandemic. The focus has been on continuing momentum in the programme 
recognising the impact of the pandemic on vulnerable children and adults.

In May 2021, the Action on ACEs programme held an Ambassadors Networking event. This 
was followed by the annual ACEs conference in June (ran jointly with education colleagues) 
as a virtual event. The conference, which was attended by 497 delegates, focused on the 
importance of resilience as a protective factor against the impact of ACEs and included the 
presentation of Change Maker Awards to individuals and organisations making a difference 
in their community or sector. In the delegate feedback, 100% of attendees rated the 
conference overall as excellent or very good; and 100% expected to use what they had 
learnt at the conference in their work. 

Page 26

https://www.actionaces.org/partners/


7

Refresh of the ACEs strategy and action plan

The ACEs panel are currently overseeing the refresh of the Action on ACEs strategy. The 
strategy reflects on learning and achievements to date and sets out our priorities going 
forward. The overarching priorities remain:

 raising awareness and understanding of ACEs with communities and 
organisations;

 proving training, resources and information;
 working in partnership with communities and organisations to build resilient 

communities;
 incorporating ACEs and trauma informed approaches into relevant organisational 

policies, strategies and contracts; and
 growing the evidence base and sharing best practice. 

The programme has also identified a number of new areas to focus on. These include a 
focus on the relationship between ACEs and ‘trauma informed approaches’ which aim to 
increase practitioners’ awareness of the negative impact of trauma. The panel is also looking 
at widening the ACEs programme to focus on supporting those working with vulnerable 
adults who are experiencing the long term impact of childhood adversity and trauma.

In addition to the strategy refresh, the ACEs panel is supporting a number of specific 
projects, including:

 rolling out a pilot of trauma informed training for the VCS sector in conjunction 
with the Nelson Trust;

 working with education colleagues to introduce Trauma Informed Relational 
Practice training for schools.

The ACEs panel has also been supporting the CHK Foundation who are providing funding to 
a number of VCS organisations in the county to roll out mentoring programmes for 
vulnerable young women at risk of ACEs or involvement with the criminal justice system.

Next steps

The revised ACEs strategy will be launched later this year and will feed into the annual 
action plan. Discussions are also underway with partners to identify a recurrent funding 
stream for the programme to support achievement of the priorities identified in the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing strategy. 

5. Children and Young People’s Transformation Programme – Weight Management

Improving the health and wellbeing of children and young people (aged 0-25 years) is a key 
priority for NHS England and NHS Improvement (NHS&I), as set out in the NHS Long Term 
Plan. A Children and Young People Transformation Programme has been established to 
oversee delivery of the Long Term Plan commitments. This focuses on a range of priorities, 
from improving care for children with special educational needs, supporting integration and 
development of new models of care, to improving transition to adult services.  One of the 
topics under the ‘supporting integration and new models of care’ theme focuses on weight 
management support (obesity treatment). 

Page 27

https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/resources/nhs-long-term-plan-summary-child-health-proposals
https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/resources/nhs-long-term-plan-summary-child-health-proposals


8

In 2019 Gloucestershire County Council and NHS Gloucestershire CCG commissioned a 
specialist childhood weight management organisation, BeeZee Bodies to work with families 
in seven neighbourhoods in Gloucester City and the Forest of Dean, to co-develop a 
package of weight management support able to meet their needs. The resulting offer, the 
first of its kind, uses a ’structural resilience model’1 to identify and support families to 
address the practical, social and economic issues that impact their ability engage and 
succeed in weight management. 

On the back of regional and national interest in our weight management offer, NHSE&I have 
invited NHS Gloucestershire CCG (working in partnership with the public health team) to 
submit an expression of interest to participate as a Transformation Programme ‘integration 
site’ for obesity. This will involve developing and testing a new model of weight management 
care, which integrates ‘Tier 2’ (community-based) and ‘Tier 3’ (clinical) weight management 
with wider children’s services, thereby offering a coherent, flexible and child-centred 
package of care. 

In August we learned that we have been selected as one of two integration sites for obesity 
in England; the other being Greater Manchester. The integration project will run from 
September 2021 to 31st March 2024 and is supported by national grant funding. Funding is  
circa £240k Year 1, with subsequent years still to be confirmed. 

Our local vision is ‘to create a weight management pathway that is greater than the sum of 
its parts, that is embedded in the local landscape and contexts of the children and families it 
is designed to support’.  We will work with Gloucestershire’s Joint Commissioning Hub to 
ensure that all children’s services are able to play their part in improving weight management 
outcomes.  We also intend to use the opportunity to test other models of care including, life 
coaches for children in care, and utilising existing non-clinical support e.g. social prescribing.

Our priorities for the remainder of 2021/22 are to consolidate the current Tier 2 offer and to 
work with the Tier 3 provider (Bristol’s ‘COCO’ clinic) and local stakeholders, including NHS 
providers, to develop local pathways. It is our intention is start integrated service provision 
during the first quarter of 2022/23. 

6. Drugs and Alcohol Update

The Committee had a short update in September on the recommendations arising out of the 
recently published report of the second phase of the Professor Dame Carol Black Review of 
Drugs.  We are still waiting on further detail of the Joint Combating Drugs Unit that is being 
set up by the Government; the new national strategy that is due to be published by the end 
of the year and the new performance framework and we will provide an update as soon as 
information is available.

Publicly reported performance indicators for the current adult community drug and alcohol 
service focus on successful completions of treatment without representing to services within 

1 The structural resilience model is designed to triage families using key demographic and circumstantial 
indicators of their readiness to make changes, not simply in terms of motivation (often the primary consideration), 
but in terms of social (partner, family, friends, system), emotional (mental wellbeing, readiness to learn and apply 
knowledge) and structural (financial, employment, living situation, general stability within their situation).

Page 28



9

the following six months.  Performance against these indicators has been on a downward 
trajectory for the past six quarters which has been exacerbated by the need to almost 
entirely halt discharges to keep vulnerable people safe and under observation at a time of 
significantly increased risk during the Pandemic and the various lockdowns.  This downward 
trajectory is mirrored nationally but Commissioners are working closely with the provider to 
help them implement a recovery plan.  Plans for a new abstinence and aftercare service are 
being put in place and we are exploring how we can improve recruitment and workforce 
development. The provider performs well against targets for numbers in treatment and 
getting people into treatment within the specified timeframe of three weeks.

Recognising that many things contribute to a person’s ability to recover from addiction 
including having appropriate housing, physical and mental health support and employment, 
commissioners are also liaising with colleagues across the system to look at how we can 
commission services more effectively for individuals experiencing multiple disadvantages. 

A Strategic Review of Drugs and Alcohol, started just before lockdown in 2020, has recently 
recommenced and we are currently collating and analysing data and engaging with 
stakeholders and service users.  We hope to have interim findings by January 2022 and a 
final report by March.  This report will inform our future commissioning of community drug 
and alcohol services and will give us a good benchmark of where we are as the new national 
strategy is introduced.

REPORT ENDS

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee

Report from the Executive Director of Adult Social Care and Public 
Health

9 November 2021 – Adult Social Care Update
_________________________________________________  

Social Care Reform

In September, the Government released the policy document “Build Back Better. Our 

Plan for Health and Social Care”.  The first part of the document sets out the 

Government’s plan for health care covering: Tackling the electives backlog; Putting 

the NHS on a sustainable footing; and, Focussing on prevention.  The document 

then sets out the plan for Adult Social Care in England, with the final section 

covering the Health and Social Care Levy.

In its plan for Adult Social Care, the Government sets out that it is committed to 

creating a sustainable adult social care system that is fit for the future, alongside its 

programme of wider healthcare reform.  It identifies that for England (different 

systems operate elsewhere in the UK) the Government will work with leaders in local 

Government, the NHS and service users and carers, to develop and publish a White 

Paper for reforming adult social care, which will commence a once in a generation 

transformation to adult social care. It will: offer choice, control and independence to 

care users; provide an outstanding quality of care; and, be fair and accessible to all 

who need it, when they need it.

To begin this transformation in adult social care, the Government will:

 Introduce a cap on personal care costs - £86,000 as from October 2023;

 Provide financial assistance to those without substantial assets - anyone with 

assets of less than £20,000 will not have to make any contribution for their care 

and anyone with assets of between £20,000 and £100,000 will be eligible for 

some means-tested support;

 Deliver wider support for the social care system - including investing in the 

workforce, in carers, in housing in improving information for service users and a 

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



2

new assurance framework to ensure Local Authorities are delivering on their 

obligations; and

 Improve the integration of health and social care system – aligning to the 

development of Integrated Care Systems through the Health and Care Board.

Fuller details on all of these issues will be provided as they become available but in 
the meantime the full policy document can be accessed via 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/build-back-better-our-plan-for-health-
and-social-care

Quality

Gloucestershire Integrated Brokerage (GIB)
Contract Management Officers (CMO) work in collaboration with providers to ensure 

that services offered to individuals are contractually sound, hold safeguarding and 

the health of individuals as a priority, react swiftly to concerns and who have a robust 

set of policies and procedures to include business continuity. By effectively 

managing the market, CMO’s can ensure that services meet need and are targeted 

to the needs of the local population. Whilst compliance is the priority for CMO’s work 

with providers, the reality is building relationships in which providers feel confident to 

raise concerns, are able to give honest feedback and are confident they will be 

supported to improve and develop their services. Providers are encouraged to work 

collaboratively in their own communities to improve services to individuals and 

develop better service provision. 

The development of the current quality assurance programme was part of the Joint 

Commissioning Partnership’s response to the Winterbourne View enquiry. The 

programme currently consists of 3 work streams: -

i)  GCC Quality Team 

The Quality Team is an intelligence-led service which supports quality improvements 

across care homes; supported living; domiciliary care; day opportunities and 

assessment and treatment units for people with learning and physical disabilities and 

mental health conditions.

Page 32

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/build-back-better-our-plan-for-health-and-social-care
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/build-back-better-our-plan-for-health-and-social-care


3

ii)   Peer-led Quality Reviews
This is a commissioned service delivered by Inclusion Gloucestershire.  They employ 

“Experts by Experience” to work alongside Quality Checking Coordinators to conduct 

quality assessments in accordance with the agreed frameworks across all care 

settings.  

iii)   Quality Compass and Quality Star software 

Quality Compass is a further development of the original Quality 360° survey 

software developed and pioneered by GCC. The software collects the views from an 

individual’s circle of support about the care and support services they receive. The 

feedback collected is used to generate a report, which includes recommendations for 

improvement as well as benchmarking data.  This report is published to the care and 

support provider.

Quality Star provides:

- Quality metrics that which integrates all quality information.

- A link to current CQC inspection reports and results.

- An ability to upload reports/data from approved third party sources.

- Additional narrative by internal users.

- Customised and interactive reporting (including mapping).

- Robust security and data protection measures.

Due to the recent Safeguarding Adult Review (SAR) of 3 people with a learning 

disability (Joanna, Jon and Ben) who died in a private mental health hospital in 

Norfolk, NHS England and Improvement are reviewing the quality assurance for 

people with a Learning Disability and/or Autism in specialist Inpatient Units.  Please 

find link to the SAR 

https://www.norfolksafeguardingadultsboard.info/assets/SARs/SAR-Joanna-Jon-and-

Ben/SAR-Rpt-Joanna-JonBen_FINAL-PUBLICATION02-June2021.pdf .

Inter-County Placements
As previously highlighted to this committee, Gloucestershire accommodates a 

significantly high number of Inter-County Placements.  For placements which are not 

Page 33

https://www.norfolksafeguardingadultsboard.info/assets/SARs/SAR-Joanna-Jon-and-Ben/SAR-Rpt-Joanna-JonBen_FINAL-PUBLICATION02-June2021.pdf
https://www.norfolksafeguardingadultsboard.info/assets/SARs/SAR-Joanna-Jon-and-Ben/SAR-Rpt-Joanna-JonBen_FINAL-PUBLICATION02-June2021.pdf


4

funded by Gloucestershire County Council or the wider Integrated Care System 

(CCG or Gloucestershire Health and Care NHS Trust), there is no access to 

information about the individuals who live there, nor a legal basis to access settings.  

  This leads to the following issues: - 

 Inappropriate Placements – There are a number of incidents where there 

has been an Inter County placement made into a property without any 

consultation with GCC, CCG or GHC.  Within a short period of time the 

person’s behaviours escalates to an extent where the placement is not safe, 

specialist health services need to be involved and in some cases the person is 

Sectioned under the Mental Health Act.

 Cost Implications – There is a significant impact on health service costs 

within Primary, Secondary and Acute Care, due to the high levels of learning 

disability/mental health placements, the impact on GHC is significant.  

However, if the number of Inter County placements continues to rise, this will 

further impact on Gloucestershire residents as services are spread more 

thinly.

 Safeguarding – As a system, we have a responsibility to ensure that 

everyone who lives in Gloucestershire are safe.  Frequently, because we are 

not notified of Inter County placements by the placing Authority or Provider, 

the first we are made aware of an Inter County placement individual is when a 

safeguarding breach is notified.

Since the last report there has been another serious incident in relation to a setting 

where all placements are funded by other authorities.  This issue was escalated to a 

Section 42 Large Scale Safeguarding Investigation in order for GCC to collated all 

the evidence from the different agencies, funding authorities and jointly agreed 

actions/next steps.  

We plan to hold a Quality Summit to discuss how we work together moving forward 

and share information across agencies.  

Page 34



5

Mandatory vaccination policy

Following the impact of the Covid pandemic on people living in care homes, there 

was a public consultation seeking to make Covid vaccination a condition of 

deployment in care home. The rationale for this being that despite high numbers of 

testing in care homes and use of PPE, from April 2020 – September 2021 there have 

been almost 30,000 deaths involving COVID-19 in CQC registered care homes[1], 

with vaccination offering the best protection for staff and residents. Friends and 

relatives will not need to be vaccinated to visit a resident.

This legislation was passed by government in Summer 2021 and as of November 11 

2021, all care home workers, and anyone entering a care home, will need to be fully 

vaccinated, unless they are exempt under the regulations. This is following a grace 

period, started on 22 July 2021, to allow unvaccinated CQC-regulated care home 

staff to be vaccinated or move onto alternative employment.

Anyone who enters a care home as part of their professional responsibilities will also 

need to show proof of vaccination (unless they are exempt). However, in certain 

circumstances, people who are not double vaccinated will need entry into CQC-

regulated care home to respond to urgent situations and should be permitted access. 

These include;

• Emergency assistance:

o Members of the emergency services

o Social workers responding to immediate safe-guarding concerns

• Visiting a resident who is dying e.g. palliative care team or spiritual leader

• Emergency maintenance work

[1] Number of deaths in care homes notified to the Care Quality Commission, England - Office for National 
Statistics (ons.gov.uk)

Page 35

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/datasets/numberofdeathsincarehomesnotifiedtothecarequalitycommissionengland
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/datasets/numberofdeathsincarehomesnotifiedtothecarequalitycommissionengland


6

What are the relevant medical exemptions?
In rare circumstances it may not be appropriate for staff to have the vaccination due 

to clinical reasons. The exemptions are guided by the Green Book on Immunisations 

against infectious disease[2] and include:

 Severe allergy to all COVID-19 vaccines or their constituents
 Those who have had severe adverse reactions to the first dose 

A short-term exemption will also be available for those with short-term medical 

conditions (e.g. people receiving hospital care or receiving medication which may 

interact with the vaccination), and also a short-term exemption is also available for 

pregnant women should they choose to take it. However, it is important to note that 

the vast majority of pregnant women who become seriously ill with COVID-19 are 

unvaccinated.

Medical exemptions can be obtained via an application form from NHS 119 and 

subsequent assessment by a GP. If approved this will result in a Covid-PASS which 

will look indistinguishable to those who have received both vaccinations so as to 

maintain patient confidentiality.

What impact will this have on the Gloucestershire Care sector?

Significant efforts have been made during the roll out of the vaccination programme 

to encourage and enable vaccine uptake in care homes. This has included outreach 

clinics to care settings, better vaccine conversations training for care home 

managers, a clinician email contact and development and promotion of specific 

educational resources for care homes. 

CQC registered care homes are required to report their staff and resident vaccine 

uptake weekly on an ‘NHS Capacity Tracker’ (web-based data capture tool) and this 

has been used to prioritise contact with homes and discuss barriers to uptake by 

contract managers throughout the programme. It is frequently found that the capacity 

tracker has not been updated by the care home to reflect the current uptake and 

[2] Greenbook COVID-19 chapter 14a (publishing.service.gov.uk) p28 Contraindications to vaccination

Page 36

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1018444/Greenbook_chapter_14a_16Sept21.pdf


7

reminders to update this are regularly sent from the brokerage team and through 

Gloucestershire Care Providers Association.

To assess the impact of the legislation on the workforce an audit of homes with 

uptake lower than 90% took place in August 2021. This audit found that the policy is 

likely to impact less than 4% of the overall workforce in these settings and that the 

uptake reported by homes on the NHS capacity tracker overestimates the true 

number unvaccinated. These figures are in line with that predicted by the DHSC 

‘Statement of Impact’ which predicted 3-12% of care home staff being unvaccinated 

by 11th November 2021. As some of those currently declining the vaccine are on 

maternity leave, it is probable that these numbers will decrease even further as they 

may choose to have the vaccine prior to returning to work.

Overall;

 Follow up with 54 older adult care home providers found that 102 staff were 

likely to be leaving due to declining the vaccine (3.85%). 

 Follow up 20 younger adult providers found 36 of 936 staff were likely to be 

leaving due to declining the vaccine (3.84%)

Consultation on widening mandatory vaccination

On 9th September 2021, DHSC launched a 6-week consultation to seek views on 

making COVID-19 vaccination a mandatory condition of employment for frontline 

workers in all health and care settings. In social care, this second cohort of staff 

would include domiciliary care staff, supported living and day services. The 

consultation will also consider whether flu vaccination should be mandatory in these 

settings. 

The COVID-19 vaccine has already had a significant impact on reducing 

hospitalisations and deaths, with UKHSA estimating that over 112,000 lives have 

been saved so far. This winter we expect seasonal flu and COVID to co-circulate, 

with the potential to add significantly to winter pressures. As well as protecting 

vulnerable service users, the proposals aim to protect staff, where extensive 

Page 37



8

unexpected staff absences can put added pressure on those delivering care to 

residents.

If this consultation is approved, there is however a risk that this will add to further 

staff loss in Gloucestershire’s non-CQC regulated care providers market. It may also 

cause further staff loss in Gloucestershire’s CQC regulated homes due to flu vaccine 

refusal. 

If this legislation is agreed we can mitigate these impacts and apply our experience 

gained to date to;

 Expand our support to all care home providers, empowering social care providers 

to feel confident in their conversations about vaccination and sources of 

information and further support through better conversations training.

 Ensure that these care providers have ready access to national and local 

resources regarding flu vaccinations.

 Reassure managers that skills learnt in COVID-19 vaccination conversations are 

transferrable to flu vaccination. 

 Work with the local NHS programme to enable easy access to both vaccines 

through drive-through, walk in and outreach opportunities.

We await the outcome of this consultation.

1. Number of deaths in care homes notified to the Care Quality Commission, 
England - Office for National Statistics (ons.gov.uk)

2. Coronavirus (COVID-19) vaccination of people working or deployed in care 
homes: operational guidance (publishing.service.gov.uk)

3. Greenbook COVID-19 chapter 14a (publishing.service.gov.uk) p28 
Contraindications to vaccination

4. Statement of impact – The Health and Social Care Act 2008 (Regulated 
Activities) (Amendment) (Coronavirus) Regulations 2021 - GOV.UK 
(www.gov.uk)

Housing, Health and Care

The Gloucestershire Strategic Housing Partnership has continued to enhance the 

Warm and Well Programme, enabling greater collaboration between the County 

Page 38

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/datasets/numberofdeathsincarehomesnotifiedtothecarequalitycommissionengland
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/datasets/numberofdeathsincarehomesnotifiedtothecarequalitycommissionengland
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1010601/coronavirus-covid-19-vaccination-of-people-working-or-deployed-in-care-homes-operational-guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1010601/coronavirus-covid-19-vaccination-of-people-working-or-deployed-in-care-homes-operational-guidance.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1018444/Greenbook_chapter_14a_16Sept21.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/making-vaccination-a-condition-of-deployment-in-older-adult-care-homes/outcome/statement-of-impact-the-health-and-social-care-act-2008-regulated-activities-amendment-coronavirus-regulations-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/making-vaccination-a-condition-of-deployment-in-older-adult-care-homes/outcome/statement-of-impact-the-health-and-social-care-act-2008-regulated-activities-amendment-coronavirus-regulations-2021
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/making-vaccination-a-condition-of-deployment-in-older-adult-care-homes/outcome/statement-of-impact-the-health-and-social-care-act-2008-regulated-activities-amendment-coronavirus-regulations-2021


9

Council, District Councils and the NHS and resulting in considerable additional 

funding to support projects in the county. Two grants of approximately £1m were 

awarded to the county as part of the Local Authority Delivery phase 1a and 1b of the 

Green Homes Grant Scheme in 2020-21. This will enable the insulation of an 

additional 200 park homes and also offer air source heat pumps to residents in rural 

areas who have no gas supply. This, not only improves the energy efficiency of 

homes to make them warmer, but also significantly reduces carbon emissions.          

Through the partnership additional funding has been accessed during 2021-22. This 

includes Energy Company Obligation (ECO) funding, meaning every £1 invested in 

Warm and Well results in an additional £14.50 in capital investment.

Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



Quarter 2 2021/22

Purpose of the report
To provide a strategic overview of the Council's performance for Quarter 2 2021/22.

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

Page number
Key to Symbols 2
Adult Social Care – Commissioning 3
Adult Social Care  Delivery 4
Prevention, Wellbeing & Communities 5
Public Protection, Parking & Libraries 7
Strategic Risk Register Summary 8

Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny
Committee

1

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 8



Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4) 4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3) 3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2) 2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1) 1 2 3 4 5

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with the Likelihood of each risk)

Risk Symbols
Risk Value Increasing
Risk Value Decreasing
No Change

Measure Symbols
Performance Better than Target
Performance Worse than Target
Performance significantly worse than Target
No information
Missing Target
No Value

Bigger is Better A bigger value for this measure is good
Smaller is Better A smaller value for this measure is good
Plan is best Where it is better for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Key to Symbols

2

P
age 42



Commissioning  Adult Social Care

Cllr Kathy Williams

Mental Health

% of referrals for an AMHP assessment that led to support or
protection being put in place

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 58.5% 60.9% 60.0%
Of the 340 AMHP Assessments completed in the
quarter, 207 resulted in detention or other support
being put in place.

n/a

% of Individuals with a second or subsequent AMHP
assessment with 12 months

Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 25.1% 27.1% 40.0% n/a

% of Adults receiving secondary Mental Health services in
settled accommodation

Bigger is Better Snapshot 87.0% 88.0% 89.0% 89.0% 88.0% 85.0% 55.2%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

Target
Sep21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Learning Disability

% of Adults with Learning Disabilities in settled
accommodation

Bigger is Better Snapshot 79.4% 79.2% 79.1% 79.1% 79.1% 78.0% 73.1%

% of Adults with Learning Disabilities in Employment Bigger is Better Annual 8.7% 6.8% 6.4% 3.1% 0.8% Relates to March 2020 figure 4.3%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

Target
Sep21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Mar16 Mar17 Mar18 Mar19 Actual Mar20 Comments
Comparator
Group

Adult Social Care Transformation

% of GCC Commissioned Providers judged to be Good or
Outstanding by CQC

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 94.1% 92.3% 90.0%
There is one provider judged as Inadequate with a
further 34 providers judged as Requires
Improvement.

n/a

Permanent admissions 1864 to residential & nursing care
homes per 100,000 population

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 8.9 10.8 9.7 19.4 19.1 13.8

There were 71 permanent admissions in the rolling
year to the end of September 2021, slightly down on
the 72 permanent admissions in the year to June
2021.  Of these 71 individuals, 34 were Physical
Disabilities (1864), 32 were Learning Disabilities and
5 were Mental Health. There remain some
inconsistencies on the way that admissions are coded
(relating to Short Breaks) which may be inflating the
overall rate slightly, however the rate is similar to
that over the same period to June 2019 (preCOVID)
and has historically been off target.

13.8

Permanent admissions aged 65+ to residential & nursing care
homes per 100,000 population

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 439.2 472.7 433.4 555.9 543.7 579.2
Note that June 2021 has been refreshed (from 472.7
to 555.9) to reflect retrospective cases added since
the last reporting period.

579.2

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

Target
Sep21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Carers

Average waiting time for a Care Act Compliant Assessment (in
working days)

Smaller is Better Snapshot 19.0 17.0 14.0 15.0 17.0 30.0 n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

Target
Sep21

Comments
Comparator
Group

3

P
age 43

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Delivery  Adult Social Care

Cllr Carole AllawayMartin

Adult Safeguarding

% of Section 42 enquiries this quarter where the risk was
reduced or removed

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 88.0% 87.3% 93.1% 83.3% 85.3% 85.0%

There were 150 closures during the Quarter. Of these
only 5 were closed where the Risk Remained,
however there were 17 closures where there was no
impact recorded.

84.5%

% of S42 Enquiries open for more than 26 weeks Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 32.5% 22.6% 32.4% 48.3% 39.1% 30.0%

This is an improving picture, however numbers may
still be adversely affected by LAS processes. New
processes for opening/closing of Safeguarding cases
were implemented at the start of October 2021.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

Target
Sep21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Adult Social Care

% of Service Users who have had a review/ reassessment of
their needs within the last 12 months

Bigger is Better Snapshot 48.0% 52.0% 53.0% 43.6% 52.1% 50.0% n/a

% of all ASC Contacts with a decision within 1 working day Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 94.2% 93.5% 93.7% 95.0%
This can be broken down as 95.4% of all contacts
received via the CSC and 88.9% of all other contacts

n/a

% of ASC contacts signposted or closed Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 31.0% 33.0% 33.0% 39.4% 40.9% 33.0% n/a
% of clients who need no long term care after their period of
reablement

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 91.1% 85.1% 85.6% 92.7% 93.8% 85.0% n/a

Delayed transfers of care from hospital due to Adult Social
Care per 100,000 population

Smaller is Better Rolling Year 3.50
DTOC measures were suspended on 1st March 2020
There is no data available at present.

3.50

Social care reported quality of life Bigger is Better Annual 19.4 19.7 19.1 19.6 19.6
Relates to March 2020 figure. Next update due in late
2022 as ASCOF Service User Survey did not go
ahead in 2020/21 due to the COVID19 pandemic.

19.1

Carer reported Quality of Life Bigger is Better Annual 7.4 7.4 7.4 7.4 7.4 Relates to March 2019 figure 7.4

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

Target
Sep21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21
Actual
Jun21

Target
Jun21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Mar16 Mar17 Mar18 Mar19 Actual Mar20 Comments
Comparator
Group

FAB

Average number of working days to complete a FAB
assessment

Smaller is Better Latest Quarter 16.2 16.1

There were 588 FAB assessments completed in the
Quarter taking an average of 16.14 working days to
complete each assessment.

During the quarter the number of individuals pending
a FAB assessment (where the assessment had not
started) fell from 570 at the start of July to 367 at the
end of September and improvement work is ongoing
in respect of individuals who have had assessments
open for a longer period of time.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Actual Sep21 Comments
Comparator
Group

4

P
age 44

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')


Prevention, WellBeing and Communities

Cllr Tim Harman
Public Health

Proportion of adult alcohol misusers who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of
completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

37.4% 36.8% 31.2% 28.1% 25.9% 35.0%

The Q1 performance is 25.9%, this is a reduction
from last quarter.  Projecting forward 6 months we
are anticipating that the performance drop further to
Q2 and will begin to slowly recover toward the end of
Q3, reflecting a change in measures taken by the
service in response to the pandemic.  There are
multiple reasons for this drop including the halt on
discharges as a safety measure in response to the
pandemic.  96 further completions would be required
to bring this into the LA family comparator top
quartile.

36.9%

Proportion of all Opiate Users in treatment, who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of
completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

5.9% 5.4% 4.6% 5.1% 4.4% 6.3%

The Q1 performance is 4.4%, which is a reduction
from the previous quarter and it would require 24
further completions to bring this into the LA family
comparator top quartile.  Projecting forward 6 months
we are anticipating that the performance will drop
further at Q2, but will begin to slowly recover toward
the end of Q3, reflecting a change in measures taken
by the service in response to the pandemic. There
are a number reasons for this anticipated drop, but it
is primarily driven the halt on discharges as a safety
measure in response to the pandemic.

5.7%

Proportion of all NonOpiate Users in treatment, not
representing 6 months after completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

32.2% 29.8% 25.7% 25.3% 21.3% 33.2%

The Q4 performance is 21.3%, this is a reduction
from last quarter.  Projecting forward 6 months we
are anticipating that the performance will drop further
at Q2, but will begin to slowly recover toward the end
of Q3, reflecting a change in measures taken by the
service in response to the pandemic.  There are a
number of reasons for this drop, but it is primarily
driven the halt on discharges as a safety measure in
response to the pandemic.  95 further completions
would be required to bring this into the LA family
comparator top quartile.

33.2%

% of pregnant smokers achieving a 4 week quit Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

88.0% 83.0% 80.0% 87.0% 82.0% 70.0% n/a

Number of customers who achieve a significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

513 480 735 619 614 763

The numbers achieving a significant risk factor
improvement remains steady compared to Q4.
However, the target has still not been achieved and
this is due to having no Slimming World outcomes as
the programme has been halted due to C19.  The
loss of this performance data significantly impacts on
the performance of this indicator.
The service was reinstated in June 2021 and
therefore we would expect an improvement in this
indicator in Q2.  HLS performance remains strong
with 478/619 (77%) of people accessing support from
the service achieving a significant improvement.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low
Reporting
Basis

Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21
Actual
Jun21

Target
Jun21

Comments
Comparator
Group

% of Covid19 cases referred for Contact Tracing that have
been completed

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 86.4% 95.4% 88.7% 86.7%

For all confirmed cases which have been through
contract tracing (either national track and trace or
local contract tracing) with a test date between
01/07/2021 and 30/09/2021. 13.3% failed.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Actual Sep21 Comments
Comparator
Group

% Reception Children overweight including obesity Smaller is Better Academic Year 24.3% 23.8% 22.0% 23.7% 23.7%

This is the latest published data and relates to the
academic year 2019/20. The NCMP programme was
paused in response to Covid19 and this data has
been deemed sufficient for publication but unreliable
for benchmarking purposes. The figures for the
2020/21 academic year are due to be published on 16
November 2021.

% Year 6 Children overweight including obesity Smaller is Better Academic Year 31.1% 32.1% 31.9% 32.4% 32.4%

This is the latest published data and relates to the
academic year 2019/20. The NCMP programme was
paused in response to Covid19. The figures for the
2020/21 academic year are due to be published on 16
November 2021.

31.6%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep17 Sep18 Sep19 Sep20 Actual Sep21 Comments
Comparator
Group

Suicide rate per 100,000 Population Smaller is Better 3Year Average 10.8 9.8 10.4 10.2 11.0 11.4

The figure reported covers the three year period
(20182020) where there were an additional 15
suicides compared to 20172019 (from 170 to 185).
The National, Regional, Comparator Group and
Gloucestershire rates have all increased since 2017
2019. Gloucestershire's rate remains broadly in line
with the National rate of 10.4 and our Comparator
Group (11.4). The South West regional rate is 11.6.

11.4

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec16 Dec17 Dec18 Dec19
Actual
Dec20

Target
Dec20

Comments
Comparator
Group

5

P
age 45

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')


Prevention, WellBeing and Communities

Cllr Tim Harman
Public Health

Proportion of adult alcohol misusers who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of
completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

37.4% 36.8% 31.2% 28.1% 25.9% 35.0%

The Q1 performance is 25.9%, this is a reduction
from last quarter.  Projecting forward 6 months we
are anticipating that the performance drop further to
Q2 and will begin to slowly recover toward the end of
Q3, reflecting a change in measures taken by the
service in response to the pandemic.  There are
multiple reasons for this drop including the halt on
discharges as a safety measure in response to the
pandemic.  96 further completions would be required
to bring this into the LA family comparator top
quartile.

36.9%

Proportion of all Opiate Users in treatment, who successfully
completed treatment and did not represent within 6 months of
completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

5.9% 5.4% 4.6% 5.1% 4.4% 6.3%

The Q1 performance is 4.4%, which is a reduction
from the previous quarter and it would require 24
further completions to bring this into the LA family
comparator top quartile.  Projecting forward 6 months
we are anticipating that the performance will drop
further at Q2, but will begin to slowly recover toward
the end of Q3, reflecting a change in measures taken
by the service in response to the pandemic. There
are a number reasons for this anticipated drop, but it
is primarily driven the halt on discharges as a safety
measure in response to the pandemic.

5.7%

Proportion of all NonOpiate Users in treatment, not
representing 6 months after completion

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

32.2% 29.8% 25.7% 25.3% 21.3% 33.2%

The Q4 performance is 21.3%, this is a reduction
from last quarter.  Projecting forward 6 months we
are anticipating that the performance will drop further
at Q2, but will begin to slowly recover toward the end
of Q3, reflecting a change in measures taken by the
service in response to the pandemic.  There are a
number of reasons for this drop, but it is primarily
driven the halt on discharges as a safety measure in
response to the pandemic.  95 further completions
would be required to bring this into the LA family
comparator top quartile.

33.2%

% of pregnant smokers achieving a 4 week quit Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

88.0% 83.0% 80.0% 87.0% 82.0% 70.0% n/a

Number of customers who achieve a significant risk factor
improvement

Bigger is Better Quarter in
Arrears

513 480 735 619 614 763

The numbers achieving a significant risk factor
improvement remains steady compared to Q4.
However, the target has still not been achieved and
this is due to having no Slimming World outcomes as
the programme has been halted due to C19.  The
loss of this performance data significantly impacts on
the performance of this indicator.
The service was reinstated in June 2021 and
therefore we would expect an improvement in this
indicator in Q2.  HLS performance remains strong
with 478/619 (77%) of people accessing support from
the service achieving a significant improvement.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low
Reporting
Basis

Jun20 Sep20 Dec20 Mar21
Actual
Jun21

Target
Jun21

Comments
Comparator
Group

% of Covid19 cases referred for Contact Tracing that have
been completed

Bigger is Better Latest Quarter 86.4% 95.4% 88.7% 86.7%

For all confirmed cases which have been through
contract tracing (either national track and trace or
local contract tracing) with a test date between
01/07/2021 and 30/09/2021. 13.3% failed.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21 Actual Sep21 Comments
Comparator
Group

% Reception Children overweight including obesity Smaller is Better Academic Year 24.3% 23.8% 22.0% 23.7% 23.7%

This is the latest published data and relates to the
academic year 2019/20. The NCMP programme was
paused in response to Covid19 and this data has
been deemed sufficient for publication but unreliable
for benchmarking purposes. The figures for the
2020/21 academic year are due to be published on 16
November 2021.

% Year 6 Children overweight including obesity Smaller is Better Academic Year 31.1% 32.1% 31.9% 32.4% 32.4%

This is the latest published data and relates to the
academic year 2019/20. The NCMP programme was
paused in response to Covid19. The figures for the
2020/21 academic year are due to be published on 16
November 2021.

31.6%

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep17 Sep18 Sep19 Sep20 Actual Sep21 Comments
Comparator
Group

Suicide rate per 100,000 Population Smaller is Better 3Year Average 10.8 9.8 10.4 10.2 11.0 11.4

The figure reported covers the three year period
(20182020) where there were an additional 15
suicides compared to 20172019 (from 170 to 185).
The National, Regional, Comparator Group and
Gloucestershire rates have all increased since 2017
2019. Gloucestershire's rate remains broadly in line
with the National rate of 10.4 and our Comparator
Group (11.4). The South West regional rate is 11.6.

11.4

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Dec16 Dec17 Dec18 Dec19
Actual
Dec20

Target
Dec20

Comments
Comparator
Group

6

P
age 46

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D1','Col12')


Public Protection

Cllr Dave Norman

Libraries

Number of lighttouch business interactions supported by the
Growth Hubs

Bigger is Better Year to Date 5 1 4 27 74 100

The main reason for the actual being under target is
due to the libraries and Growth Hubs reforming their
core business as the restrictions ease. There has
been tentative behaviour around customer confidence
and using the space, and facilities again. We talk
regularly with the Growth Hubs and shall reengage in
an active marketing plan to encourage footfall and
usage.

We are also in the process of opening four new
innovation labs at Tewksbury, Chipping Campden,
Cheltenham and Stroud. This partnership will work
closely with the Growth Hubs to promote the services
we have on offer.

n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

Target
Sep21

Comments
Comparator
Group

Road Safety

Number of killed and seriously injured people Smaller is Better Calendar Year
to Date

133 216 277 39 129 139 n/a

Good Performance High/Low Reporting Basis
Actual Apr 
Jun 20

Actual Jul 
Sep 20

Actual Oct 
Dec 20

Actual Jan 
Mar 20

Actual Apr
 Jun 21

Forecast
Apr  Jun
21

Comments Apr  Jun 21
Comparator
Group

7

P
age 47

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('B1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A1','Col12')


Strategic Risk

Strategic Risk Register

SR5.3 Provider failures result in the council being unable to achieve
its strategic objectives

Scott, Sarah High 25 High 15 High 20 High 20 High 20 High 20

Risk of provider failure is currently increased due to staffing recruitment and
retention pressures. Staffing risks have increased due to a number of factors that
have been exacerbated by the impact of the CV19 pandemic and the additional
actions required to manage the spread of this, including but not limited to the
potential of staff having to undertake a mandatory vaccination

SR7.1
Failure to protect vulnerable adults in Gloucestershire from
abuse neglect in situations that potentially could have been
predicted and prevented.

Scott, Sarah High 20 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate 10 Moderate
10

The workload of the safeguarding team remains high. Work has been undertaken
to reduce the backlog of concerns awaiting a decision. A new member of staff
joined the team this week and this additional resource will assist in managing the
workload.

The Independent Chair of the Safeguarding Adults Board and the Head of
Safeguarding Adults are taking part in the consultation regarding support to
people who use drugs and alcohol, with the aim of looking for creative ways in
which to work more effectively with this group.

SR7.6

Unable to support all those who can, to live independently at
home, because demand for home care services outstrips
available capacity. Resulting in the reliance on temporary
respite/alternative bed based care in lieu of home care

Scott, Sarah High 20 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 High 16 High 20

We are experiencing a significant number of providers handing back packages of
care due to staffing shortages. Agencies are reporting additional pressures in
recruiting and retention of staff. A number of agencies are reporting that carers
are leaving to return to their country of origin and to take up alternative careers
in areas such as hospitality and retail.

SR7.8

Risk of legal action being taken against the Local Authority due
to failure to complete a Deprivation of Liberty assessment
within the stated time lines. Since a significant and sudden
change in the law due to a Supreme Court Judgement in
March 2014 there is an excessively high demand for best
interest assessments to be carried out for Deprivation of
Liberty (DoLS) authorisations.

Scott, Sarah High 20 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9 Moderate 9
Moderate

9

The DoLS service continues to prioritise all applications in line with ADASS
guidance.  This approach is reviewed regularly and discussed at DoLS team
meetings.  The Duty BIA role has been reduced from a full day, to half a day, to
allow more time for the completion of assessments.

Strategic Risk 5: Organisational Change Programmes

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments

Strategic Risk 7: Safeguarding Children, Young People & Adults

Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Sep20 Dec20 Mar21 Jun21
Actual
Sep21

DoT Sep
21

Comments

10

P
age 48

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E1','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col15')


Adult Social Care and Communities Scrutiny Committee - Work Plan 2021/22

1

7 September 2021 9 November 2021 25 January 2022

Scrutiny items

1) Market Management Overview
2) Gloucestershire Safeguarding Board 
Annual Report 2020/21

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report
Quarter 1 2021/22 Performance Report

Scrutiny items

1) Prevention and Early Intervention Work in 
collaboration with the Voluntary and 
Community Sector

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report
Quarter 2 2021/22 Performance Report

Scrutiny items

1) Ombudsman ASC Public Interest Report
2) Director of Public Health Annual Report
3) Domiciliary Care Report

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report

15 March 2022 (Joint Meeting with HOSC) 10 May 2022 5 July 2022

Scrutiny items

1) Winter Plan Review (ASCC members to be 
invited to attend the HOSC meeting in 
October 2021 for the item relating to 
proposals on the Winter Plan proposed by the 
NHS CCG)
2) Children’s Weight Management
3) System Flow (New Guidance) 
4) Health Inequalities 

Standard items 
Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report 
Community Safety Report

Scrutiny items

1) Covid-19 Funding/Community Grant 
Schemes Overview 

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report
Quarter 3 2021/22 Performance Report

Scrutiny items

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report
Quarter 4 2021/22 Performance Report

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 9



6 September 2022 15 November 2022 Jan 2023

Scrutiny items

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report 
Community Safety Report

Scrutiny items

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report
Quarter 3 2020/21 Performance Report

Scrutiny items

Standard items 

Adult Social Care Report
Public Health Report
Community Safety Report
Quarter 4 2020/21 Performance Report

9 November 2021

P
age 50


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Prevention and Early Intervention in collaboration with the Voluntary and Community Sector
	5 Chief Fire Officer Report
	6 Public Health Report
	7 Adult Social Care Report
	8 Quarter 2 (2021/22) Performance Report
	9 Work Plan



